
Vestavia Hills  

City Council Agenda 

May 23, 2016 

5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Brian Davis, Vestavia Hills Public Services Director 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance 

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 

9. Approval of Minutes – May 9, 2016 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business  

10. Ordinance Number 2655 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 37, 

Resurvey of Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2
nd

 Sector; Anna and Brandon 

Rooks (public hearing) 

11. Ordinance Number 2656 – Rezoning – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 37, Resurvey of Lots 18-

20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2
nd

 Sector; Rezone from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1; Anna and Brandon Rooks (public hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 2657 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3425 Jones Drive, Ralph and 

Alison McCall (public hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 2658 – Rezoning – 3425 Jones Drive; Rezone from JC E-2 to VH R-

1; Ralph and Alison McCall (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2659 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2510 & 2512 Dolly Ridge Road; 

Lots 21 &22, Dolly Ridge Estates; Don and Kristie Garrett and Todd and Leeba Strong 

(public hearing) 

15. Ordinance Number 2660 – Rezoning - 2510 & 2512 Dolly Ridge Road; Lots 21 &22, 

Dolly Ridge Estates; Rezone from JC E-2 to VH R-1; Don and Kristie Garrett and Todd 

and Leeba Strong (public hearing) 

16. Ordinance Number 2661 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2611 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 7, 

Altadena Valley Country Club Sector, Chad Speegle (public hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 2662 – Rezoning – 2611 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 7, Altadena Valley 

Country Club Sector; Rezoning from SC E-1 to VH E-2; Chad Speegle (public hearing) 



18. Ordinance Number 2663 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4705 Caldwell Mill Road; 

David Acton Building Corporation (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2664 – Rezoning – 4705 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezone from JC E-2 

To VH R-1; David Acton Building Corp (public hearing) 

New Business  

20. Resolution Number 4836 -  A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation 

Nuisance Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The City Manager To 

Abate Said Nuisance (public hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 4837 -  A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation 

Nuisance Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The City Manager To 

Abate Said Nuisance (public hearing) 

22. Resolution Number 4838 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 

Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said 

Surplus Property 

23. Resolution Number 4839 – Approving An Alcohol License For Jacquelins, Inc. (2
nd

 

Annual Crawfish Boil Event), At The Parking Lot Of 2531 Rocky Ridge Road For The 

On-Premise Sale Of 140 – Special Event Retail; Maria Adan, Executive (public hearing) 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

24. Resolution Number 4840 - Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver 

Agreements With Various Entities For Design Services And Construction Specifications 

For The Western Entrance To The Proposed Recreational Fields Located On The Former 

Altadena Valley Country Club (public hearing) 

25. Citizens Comments 

26. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

MINUTES 

 

MAY 9, 2016 
 

 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  

The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 

following: 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

George Pierce  

      John Henley  

      Jim Sharp 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 

      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

      Dan Rary, Police Chief 

      Police Capt. Kevin York 

      Police Capt. Jason Hardin 

      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 

      George Sawaya, Asst. City Treasurer 

      Bo Seagrist, Business License Administrator 

      Taneisha Tucker, Library Director 

      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

 

 

 Invocation was given by Coach Steve Gaydosh, Vestavia Hills High School, 

followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 

 The Mayor indicated that there was a problem with the video equipment from 

some power surges last week, so no video of tonight’s meeting would be taken. 

 Mr. Pierce recognized Ben Chambliss and Mark Macoy attending the meeting 

representing the Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce. 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION 

 

 The Mayor presented proclamations designating the week of May 15-21, 2016, as 

National Police Week and May 15, 2016 as Police Officers Memorial Day.  Mr. Downes 

read the proclamation and the Mayor presented them to Spencer McLaughlin and 

William Dellinger. 

 

 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that Chief St. John has a presentation. 

o Chief St. John stated that the members of Fire Station Number 2 have 

renovated the 50-plus-year-old building and the actions of these 

individuals have changed the entire building.   Susan McGee from Counter 

Dimensions in Pelham presented members of Station 2 with an “Award of 

Remodeling Excellence” for the design of the Fire Station.  Scott 

Whitworth was present to accept the award.  A short video was shown 

detailing the transformation.   

 Mr. Downes stated that Charter Cable is beginning to splice the wires that need to 

be relocated in order to begin. 

 Mr. Downes stated that approximately 67 cats have been captured.  three were 

euthanized because two had advanced feline leukemia and one with cancer; three 

have been determined to be adoptable and the remaining cats will follow-up with 

TNR and released to non-residential locations. 

 Previously, the Council approved median improvements along Montgomery 

Highway and beginning the week of May 23, a contract was executed whereby 

landscaping will be installed on the endcaps along the designated areas.  The 

contractor will be responsible for maintenance for the first couple of months.  The 

City will take over maintenance after that. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the City has been awarded a potential grant for work on 

the new nature park improvements and there might be some hurdles in utilizing 

the grant. 

 

 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 

 

 None. 

 

 . 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

 The minutes of April 25, 2016 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   

 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 3 

 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of April 25, 2016 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 

second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4830 

 

Resolution Number 4830 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept 

A Proposal To Design A Motor Scout Building For The City Of 

Vestavia Hills Police Department  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4830 was by Mr. Sharp and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution is to design a motor scout building for 

the City Hall which is part of an effort to relocate the City’s public works facilities.  This 

will allow Williams Blackstock to design and compile bid specifications for this motor 

scout building.   

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 

the Council regarding the request, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the 

question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4831 

 

Resolution Number 4831 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept 

A Proposal To Design A Municipal Fleet Operations Facility At Lot 1, 

Vestavia Sports Park And Renovation Of Current Park Maintenance 

Facility At Wald Park  (public hearing)) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4831 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution is for the location of the fleet 

operations center at the current park facility at Liberty Park and also to build a park office 

building and renovate the current maintenance facility at Wald Park.  This will retain 

Volkert to design the buildings and compile bid specifications. 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 4 

 

 

 Discussion ensued as to the timeline and cost of relocating all the services. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained. 

 

 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and that it meets Alabama 

law. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 

the Council regarding the request, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the 

question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4832 

 

Resolution Number 4832 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal 

Property Is Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And 

Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Surplus Property 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4832 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution declares some obsolete Library 

computer equipment as surplus so it can be sold. 

 

 Mr. Pierce asked if it could be used by others from a donation.  Mr. Downes 

stated that IT said they tried to sell it in the past with little results. 

 

 Mrs. Tucker stated that the computer equipment is not worth much, but the phone 

systems might bring some return if the right owners are found. 

 

 Discussion ensued and the Council conferred it would be better listed on 

GovDeals. 

 

The Mayor called for the question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 5 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4833 

 

Resolution Number 4833 – A Resolution Granting A Power Easement For Alabama 

Power On The Property Located At 501 Montgomery Highway 

(Monopole site) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4833 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution allows Alabama Power a power 

easement for the monopole located in the back of the Fire Station. 

 

The Mayor called for the question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4834 

 

Resolution Number 4834 – A Resolution Granting A Power Easement For Alabama 

Power On The Property Located At 501 Montgomery Highway 

(Vestavia Hills Bill F. Towers Fire Station Number 1) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4834 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution allows a power easement to supply 

electrical power to the Fire Station following the construction of the new restaurant next 

door. 

 

The Mayor called for the question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4835 

 

Resolution Number 4835 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept 

A Settlement Payment From Bariatrics Of Alabama, A Former 

Business Of The City Of Vestavia Hills 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4835 was by Mr. Sharp and second 

was by Mr. Pierce. 

 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 6 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution authorizes the City Manager to accept 

a settlement for some unpaid sales taxes due from a business no longer in operation in the 

City.  He explained the business, the closing and the audit of the closed business along 

with the offer of unpaid sales taxes of food sales that the business had thought was non-

taxable merchandise.  When audited, it was determined to be taxable sales. 

 

 Melvin Turner, Finance Director, explained the circumstances.  Discussion 

ensued and it was determined it would be extremely difficult to see any collections if this 

goes to court because of attorney fees, etc. 

 

 Mr. Boone stated that there is no issue for settling for less than is owed, but he 

recommended that the attorney representing RDS ensures the bankruptcy judge is aware 

of this settlement and approves this payment. 

 

MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4835 to allow approval for the 

settlement through bankruptcy court was by Mr. Pierce and second was by 

Mr. Henley.   Roll call vote: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

The Mayor called for the question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2538-A 

 

Ordinance Number 2538-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Numbers 2538 

And 2530 - Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Execute And Deliver The Second Amendment To Purchase Sale 

Agreement, By And Between The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, As 

“Seller” And Daniel Realty Company, LLC, An Alabama Limited 

Liability Company As “Purchaser”, For The Property Located In The 

Patchwork Farms PUD, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2538-A was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this allows the revisions of the original agreement in 

order to allow infrastructure improvements within the nature park by the developer 

pursuant to the PUD plans and the nature park plan.  Once the improvements are made to 

the park, the park maintenance is then turned over to the Patchwork Commercial 

Association with the City retaining ownership to the nature park. 

 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 7 

 

 Discussion ensued about a contingency and a payment to Daniel.  Mr. Downes 

stated that that was because Daniel managed the entire project which normally requires 

payment and the contingency helps to cover these extended costs for the park. 

 

 The Mayor called for the question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 

 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 

presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on May 

23, 2016 at 5 PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2655 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 

37, Resurvey of Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2
nd

 Sector; Anna and 

Brandon Rooks (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2656 – Rezoning – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 37, Resurvey of 

Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2
nd

 Sector; Rezone from Jefferson County 

E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1; Anna and Brandon Rooks (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2657 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3425 Jones Drive, 

Ralph and Alison McCall (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2658 – Rezoning – 3425 Jones Drive; Rezone from JC E-2 to 

VH R-1; Ralph and Alison McCall (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2659 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2510 & 2512 Dolly 

Ridge Road; Lots 21 &22, Dolly Ridge Estates; Don and Kristie Garrett and 

Todd and Leeba Strong (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2660 – Rezoning - 2510 & 2512 Dolly Ridge Road; Lots 21 

&22, Dolly Ridge Estates; Rezone from JC E-2 to VH R-1; Don and Kristie 

Garrett and Todd and Leeba Strong (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2661 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2611 Alta Vista Circle; 

Lot 7, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector, Chad Speegle (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2662 – Rezoning – 2611 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 7, Altadena 

Valley Country Club Sector; Rezoning from SC E-1 to VH E-2; Chad Speegle 

(public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2663 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4705 Caldwell Mill 

Road; David Acton Building Corporation (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2664 – Rezoning – 4705 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezone from 

JC E-2 To VH R-1; David Acton Building Corp (public hearing) 

 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 



City Council Minutes 

 May 9, 2016 

Page 8 

 

 

 None. 

 

 

 At 6:02 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Henley  

Meeting adjourned at 6:03 PM. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2655 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2655 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of February, 2016, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2425 Kenvil Circle 

Lot 37, Resurvey of Lots 18-20, 33-37, and 46-48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 

Anna and Brandon Rooks, Owner(s) 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and record a copy with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2655 

Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 23rd day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2655 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of May, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2655 

Page 3 

 

 



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2656 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2656 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2425 Kenvil Circle 

Lot 37, Resurvye of Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2
nd

 Sector 

Brandon and Anna Rooks, Owner(s) 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2656 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2656 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 

 



Ordinance Number 2656 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 14, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0416-16 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 
• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2425 Kenvil Cir. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Brandon & Anna Rooks 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT:  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Kenvil Cir, adjacent to Rocky Ridge Rd. 

Property began the annexation process by City Council with their approval of the 
overnight annexation (Ord. 26454) on 2/22/16. This is a compatible rezoning. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 2425 Kenvil 
Cir. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purposes Of Annexation. Second 
was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 



 2 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Sharp – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Mr. Visintainer – yes          Mr. Gilchrist – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 
 



Ordinance Number 2657 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2657 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of February, 2016, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3425 Jones Drive 

Ralph and Alison McCall, Owners 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Part of the Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 32, 

Township 18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, 

Alabama, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Begin at the Southeast corner of said Northeast quarter of Southwest 

quarter, run thence Northwardly along the East line of said quarter-quarter 

section for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Westwardly for a distance of 

105 feet; run thence Southwardly for a distance of 105 feet; run thence 

Southwardly for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Eastwardly for a 

distance of 105 feet to the point of beginning. 



Ordinance Number 2657 

Page 2 

 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 23rd day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2657 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of May, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2657 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 14, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0416-17 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 
• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3425 Jones Dr. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Ralph & Alison McCall 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT:  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Jones Dr., adjacent to Rocky Ridge Rd. 

Property began the annexation process by City Council with their approval of the 
overnight annexation (Ord. 2642) on 2/22/16. This is a compatible rezoning. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 3425 Jones 
Dr. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second 
was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 



 2 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Sharp – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Mr. Visintainer – yes          Mr. Gilchrist – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2658 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2658 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

3425 Jones Drive 

Ralph and Alison McCall, Owners 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Part of the Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 32, 

Township 18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, 

Alabama, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Begin at the Southeast corner of said Northeast quarter of Southwest 

quarter, run thence Northwardly along the East line of said quarter-quarter 

section for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Westwardly for a distance of 

105 feet; run thence Southwardly for a distance of 105 feet; run thence 

Southwardly for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Eastwardly for a 

distance of 105 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2658 

Page 2 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2658 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2658 

Page 3 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2659 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2659 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of February, 2016, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2510 & 2512 Dolly Ridge Road 

Lots 21 & 22, Dolly Ridge Estates 

Don and Kristie Garrett & Todd and Leeba Strong, Owner(s) 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2659 

Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 23rd day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2659 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of May, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2659 

Page 3 

 

 



2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road







2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road





2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road



2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road



2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road



2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road



2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road



2510 and 2512 Doly Ridge Road



Ordinance Number 2660 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2660 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2510 and 2512 Dolly Ridge Road 

Don Garrett, Kristie Garrett, Todd Strong and Leba Strong, Owners 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2660 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2660 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2660 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 14, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0416-18 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 
• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2510 & 2512 Dolly Ridge Rd. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Todd & Leeba Strong & Don & Kristie Garrett 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT:  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Dolly Ridge Rd., close to Rocky Ridge 

Rd. Property began the annexation process by City Council with their approval of the 
overnight annexation (Ord. 2643) on 2/22/16. This is a compatible rezoning. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 2510 & 
2512 Dolly Ridge Rd. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purposes Of 
Annexation. Second was by Mr. House. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 



 2 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Sharp – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Mr. Visintainer – yes          Mr. Gilchrist – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2661 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2661 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of February, 2016, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2611 Alta Vista Circle 

Lot 7, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Chad Speegle, Owner(s) 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2661 

Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 23rd day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2661 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of May, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2661 

Page 3 

 

 







2611 Alta Vista Circle





2611 Alta Vista Circle



2611 Alta Vista Circle



2611 Alta Vista Circle



2611 Alta Vista Circle



Ordinance Number 2662 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2662 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM SHELBY COUNTY E-

1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Shelby County E-1 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (low density residential district):  

2611 Alta Vista Circle 

Lot 7, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Chad Speegle, Owners 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2662 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2662 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2662 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 14, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0416-20 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2  
 
• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2611 Alta Vista Cir. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Chad Speegle 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT:  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Alta Vista Cir., adjacent to defunct 

AVCC. Property began the annexation process by City Council with their approval of 
the overnight annexation (Ord. 2644) on 2/22/16. This is a compatible rezoning. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 2611 Alta 
Vista Cir. from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation. 
Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 



 2 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Sharp – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Mr. Visintainer – yes          Mr. Gilchrist – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2663 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2663 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of February, 2016, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4705 Caldwell Mill Road 

David Acton Building Corporation, Owner(s) 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 of Section 34. Township 18. 

Range 2 West described as follows: Begin at the Southeast comer of the 

Northeast ¼ of Southwest ¼ of Section 34, Township 18. Range 2 West 

and run North along the Easterly boundary of said.1/4 1/4 for 233 feet to 

the point of beginning; thence tum an angle to the left of 90 degrees and 

run In a westerly direction for 224 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to 

the right of 90 degrees and run in a northerly direction for 83.3 feet to a 

point; thence tum an angle to the left of 77 degrees 50' and run in a 

Northeasterly direction for 169.8 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the 

right of 121 degrees 30' and run in a Northeasterly direction 210 feet to a 

point; then tum an angle to the right of 61degrees 18' and run in a 

Southeasterly direction for 250.2 feet to a point on the easterly boundary 

line of said 1/4 1/4  thence tum an angle to right of 72 degrees 33' and run 

in a southerly direction 199 feet to the point of beginning. Excepting any 

part of subject property which lies north of that certain hollow set out in 

instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 203. in the Office of the Judge 

of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2663 

Page 2 

 

 

AND ALSO, begin at the Southwest corner of the Northeast 1/4 of 

Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18, Range 2 West and run North 

along the easterly boundary of said 1/4 for 233 feet to a point; thence tum 

an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run In a westerly direction 224 feet 

to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 90 degrees and run in a 

northerly direction 83.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the left of 

77 degrees 501 and run in a Northwesterly direction for 169.8 to the point 

of beginning; thence continue in a Northwesterly direction along the last 

described course for a distance of 210 feet; thence tum an angle to the 

right of 107 degrees 46' and run in a Northeasterly direction for a distance 

of 53.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 38 degrees 42' 

and run in a Northeasterly direction for 156.7 feet to a point; thence tum 

an angle to the right of 20 degrees 54' and run in a Northeasterly direction 

for 179 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 315 degrees 08' 

and run in a Southwesterly direction for 8 distance of 210 feet to the point 

of beginning. 

 

Excepting any part of Subject property which lies north of that certain 

hollow set out in Instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 204. in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 23rd day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2663 

Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2663 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of May, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2663 

Page 4 

 

 



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road





4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



4705 Caldwell Mill Road



Ordinance Number 2664 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2664 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

4705 Caldwell Mill Road 

David Acton Building Corporation, Owner(s) 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 of Section 34. Township 18. 

Range 2 West described as follows: Begin at the Southeast comer of the 

Northeast ¼ of Southwest ¼ of Section 34, Township 18. Range 2 West 

and run North along the Easterly boundary of said.1/4 1/4 for 233 feet to 

the point of beginning; thence tum an angle to the left of 90 degrees and 

run In a westerly direction for 224 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to 

the right of 90 degrees and run in a northerly direction for 83.3 feet to a 

point; thence tum an angle to the left of 77 degrees 50' and run in a 

Northeasterly direction for 169.8 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the 

right of 121 degrees 30' and run in a Northeasterly direction 210 feet to a 

point; then tum an angle to the right of 61degrees 18' and run in a 

Southeasterly direction for 250.2 feet to a point on the easterly boundary 

line of said 1/4 1/4  thence tum an angle to right of 72 degrees 33' and run 

in a southerly direction 199 feet to the point of beginning. Excepting any 

part of subject property which lies north of that certain hollow set out in 

instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 203. in the Office of the Judge 

of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 

AND ALSO, begin at the Southwest corner of the Northeast 1/4 of 

Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18, Range 2 West and run North 

along the easterly boundary of said 1/4 for 233 feet to a point; thence tum 

an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run In a westerly direction 224 feet 

to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 90 degrees and run in a 

northerly direction 83.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the left of 

77 degrees 501 and run in a Northwesterly direction for 169.8 to the point 



Ordinance Number 2664 

Page 2 

 

of beginning; thence continue in a Northwesterly direction along the last 

described course for a distance of 210 feet; thence tum an angle to the 

right of 107 degrees 46' and run in a Northeasterly direction for a distance 

of 53.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 38 degrees 42' 

and run in a Northeasterly direction for 156.7 feet to a point; thence tum 

an angle to the right of 20 degrees 54' and run in a Northeasterly direction 

for 179 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 315 degrees 08' 

and run in a Southwesterly direction for 8 distance of 210 feet to the point 

of beginning. 

 

Excepting any part of Subject property which lies north of that certain 

hollow set out in Instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 204. in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Wendy Dickerson, as Deputy City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2664 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Wendy Dickerson 

      Deputy City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2664 

Page 3 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 14, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0416-23 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 
• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2611 Alta Vista Cir. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: David Acton Building Corp. 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT:  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Caldwell Mill Rd., adjacent to Shady 

Waters Ln. Property began the annexation process by City Council with their 
approval of Resolution 4798 on 2/22/16. This is a compatible rezoning. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 4705 
Caldwell Mill Rd. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purpose Of 
Annexation. Second was by Mr. Wolfe. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 



 2 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Sharp – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Mr. Visintainer – yes          Mr. Gilchrist – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 
 
 



Resolution Number 4836 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4836 
 

 A RESOLUTION DECLARING A WEED AND 

OTHER VEGETATION NUISANCE PURSUANT TO 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2567 AND DIRECTING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, on May 11, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2567 to establish a procedure for the 

abatement of grass and weeds and for the prosecution and abatement of grass and weed 

violations; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Compliance Officer has made a “First Demand” on the 

property located at 1524 Blind Brook Lane; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4836 as if written fully therein; 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted at the regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting of May 23, 2016 at 5:00 PM in which the facts of the matter were 

discussed; and  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

declare the property a nuisance and direct the City Manager to abate said nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions set forth in Ordinance Number 2567; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The property located at 1524 Blind Brook Lane is hereby declared a nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance Number 2567 and the City Manager is 

hereby authorized to abate said nuisance pursuant to the terms and provisions of 

said ordinance. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 



Resolution Number 4836 

Page 2 

 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 



























Resolution Number 4837 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4837 
 

 A RESOLUTION DECLARING A WEED AND 

OTHER VEGETATION NUISANCE PURSUANT TO 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2567 AND DIRECTING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, on May 11, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2567 to establish a procedure for the 

abatement of grass and weeds and for the prosecution and abatement of grass and weed 

violations; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Compliance Officer has made a “First Demand” on the 

property located at 4421 Dolly Ridge Road; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4837 as if written fully therein; 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted at the regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting of May 23, 2016 at 5:00 PM in which the facts of the matter were 

discussed; and  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

declare the property a nuisance and direct the City Manager to abate said nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions set forth in Ordinance Number 2567; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The property located at 4421 Dolly Ridge Road is hereby declared a nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance Number 2567 and the City Manager is 

hereby authorized to abate said nuisance pursuant to the terms and provisions of 

said ordinance. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 



Resolution Number 4837 

Page 2 

 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











































Resolution Number 4838 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4838 
 

 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 

PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 

DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 

SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4838 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 23
rd

 day of May, 

2016. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 



                                                                                                                                                    5/17/16 

 

 

To: Rebecca Leavings 

From: Sgt. Gaston, Officer Wilson 

Re: Surplus City Property 

 

 

      Please request that the City Council deem the following property surplus at the next meeting: 

 

 1989 Chevy Caprice 4d VIN# 1G1BU51E7KA153808 

 

Please contact me with any questions or concerns. 

 

 

                                                                 Thanks,   Sgt. Gaston       ext.#1137 

                   Officer Wilson   ext.#1110 

 

                            

WAppling
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A 



WAppling
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



WAppling
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4839 
 

 

 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR JACQUELINS, INC; MARIA ADAN, 

EXECUTIVE 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Jacquelins, Inc. (2
nd

 Annual Crawfish Boil Event), located in the 

parking lot of 2531 Rocky Ridge Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 140 – 

Special Events Retail; Maria Adan, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23
rd

 day of May, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Wendy Dickerson 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 















Resolution Number 4840 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4840 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

AND DELIVER AGREEMENTS WITH VARIOUS ENTITIES FOR 

DESIGN SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

THE WESTERN ENTRANCE TO THE PROPOSED RECREATIONAL 

FIELDS LOCATED ON THE FORMER ALTADENA VALLEY 

COUNTRY CLUB 

 

  

WHEREAS, on December 28, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2626 authorizing the purchase of property from 

Jefferson County for an alternate entrance to the proposed recreational fields to be located at the 

former Altadena Valley Country Club; and 

WHEREAS, on April 18, 2016, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills approved 

Resolution Number 4820 authorizing the purchase of property from International Park Meisler-

Keith, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company for an alternate entrance to the proposed 

recreational fields to be located at  the former Altadena Valley Country Club; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has determined that design services and construction bid 

specifications will be needed for the proposed western entrance of the former Altadena Valley 

Country Club ; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has received  a proposal for design services and 

construction bid specifications from Engineering Design Group (EDG), a copy of which is 

marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into the Resolution Number 4840 as though 

written fully therein in an amount not to exceed $50,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has received  a proposal for construction management 

services from Caprine Engineering, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and 

incorporated into the Resolution Number 4840 as though written fully therein in an amount not 

to exceed $15,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has identified certain third party services that will also be 

needed including, but not limited to geotechnical reports, etc., associated and needed for the 

design services and development of construction specifications from third party associates in an 

amount not to exceed $25,000.00; and 



Resolution Number 4840 

Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it would be in the best public interest to 

accept said proposals in order to begin development of an alternate entrance to the proposed 

recreational fields located on the former Altadena Valley Country Club  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver any and all documents 

and agreements associated with the aforesaid proposals for design services, 

construction specification services, construction management services and various 

third party services for construction of the western entrance to the Altadena Valley 

Country Club in an amount not to exceed $90,000.00; and 

2. A copy of said agreements shall be attested by the City Clerk filed in the Office of the 

City Clerk for record; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4840 shall be effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 13
th

 day of June, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



 
 
 

May 20, 2015 
 
The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
Attn: Jeff Downes, City Manager 
 
 
Re: Proposal of Survey and Civil Engineering Servic es for a New Access Road into the 

City of Vestavia Hills’ Park at Altadena 
  
 
Dear Jeff, 
 
Engineering Design Group, LLC is pleased to submit this proposal of land survey and civil 
engineering services for the above-referenced project.  Our scope of services is based on a 
conceptual layout plan we developed for the site.  This plan includes a new roadway to access 
the City of Vestavia’s new park along the Cahaba River (formerly the Altadena Valley Country 
Club golf course).  A copy of this plan is attached to this proposal as “Exhibit A.”  The proposed 
road will utilize an existing connection point to Acton Road.  Generally, our scope of services 
includes civil engineering design, and survey stake-out services for the construction of the 
roadway.  Our scope of services is described in detail on the following pages. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to present our proposal.  We look forward to working with the City 
of Vestavia Hills on this project. 
 
Attachments:  Exhibit A-Conceptual Site Plan 
    

1.0 Civil Engineering Construction Documents 

1.1 Civil Construction Documents 

We will develop a set of civil construction documents for the site improvements 
shown on the attached concept drawing.  We will submit the Construction 
Documents to the Cities of Hoover and Vestavia Hills for the purpose of obtaining a 
land disturbance permit.  We will meet with City Officials as needed to work through 
any design issues that arise during the permitting process.  The Construction 
Documents will include the following design information, at a minimum: 

a. Roadway Plan and Profiles-Plans will provide horizontal and vertical control for 
the layout and construction of the proposed road.  

b. Site Grading and Drainage Plan-Plan will include existing and finished contours, 
and storm water drainage facilities.   



 

 

c. Storm Drainage Profiles-We will provide necessary profiles for storm drainage 
pipes associated with the roadway. 

d. Erosion Control Plan-Plan will include the necessary structural BMP devices for 
the control of sedimentation at the site. 

e. Permitting Services-We will submit final civil construction plans and permit 
applications to the City of Hoover for the purpose of obtaining a land disturbance 
permit.  We have budgeted two (2) meetings with City officials.  We will address 
one (1) round of comments and resubmit plans for final approval.  Additional 
revisions or submittals will be billed at our standard hourly rates as Additional 
Services. 

f. Notes and Details-We will provide standard notes and details which pertain to 
the site’s specific construction requirements. 

1.2 Alabama Department of Environmental Management NPDES Permit 
Effective April 1, 2011, ADEM established General Permit No. ALR 100000 for 
discharges associated with regulated construction activity that will result in land 
disturbance equal to or greater than one acre or from construction activities 
involving less than one acre and which are part of a common plan of development or 
sale equal to or greater than one acre.  Construction site operators/owners seeking 
coverage under this general permit must submit a Notice of Intent (NOI) in 
accordance with the permit requirements.  Operators/owners of all regulated 
construction sites must implement and maintain effective erosion and sediment 
controls in accordance with a Construction Best Management Practices Plan 
(CBMPP) prepared and certified by a Qualified Credentialed Professional (QCP). 
Engineering Design Group will create the CBMPP Plan and submit it, along with the 
NOI, to ADEM for the purpose of obtaining the NPDES permit. 
 

1.3 Best Management Practices (BMP) Field Inspectio ns 

As a requirement of the ADEM NPDES permit, inspections of structural BMP 
devices (erosion control measures) are required at least monthly, or after each ¾” 
rainfall event.  Engineering Design Group will monitor rainfall amounts at the site 
and provide these inspections.  A report of our findings will be issued to you and 
your site contractor.  The report will include site photographs, and recommendations 
for maintenance of any failing BMP devices. 

1.4 Design Phase Meetings and Coordination 

This project will be under the We will be available during the design phase to meet 
with the Owner, Municipality, General Contractor and other sub-consultants for 
coordination of design and/or permitting items.  As the site lies within multiple 
jurisdictions (City of Hoover and City of Vestavia Hills), and accesses a Jefferson 
County Roadway, we will coordinate with these jurisdictions, provide project-related 
data as-requested, and attend meetings as needed.  We have provided an 
estimated fee for this task item as shown in section 2.0. 

1.5 Construction Administration 

We will provide bid documents (plans and specifications) and aid the City of 
Vestavia Hills during the bidding process.  Additionally, we will be available during 



 

 

the construction phase to answer questions or provide clarifications to the project 
team.  We will meet with the Contractor and/or the City as necessary during 
construction.  We have not anticipated a full-time on-site inspector.  We have 
provided an estimated fee for this task item as shown in section 2.0.   

1.6 Additional Services 

Any service need that arises and is required but has not been included in our 
original scope of services will be performed on an hourly basis according to the fee 
schedule included in this proposal.  We will discuss with the Client any additional 
service before performing the service and will not proceed with additional work 
without the Client’s approval. 

Exclusions 

Items specifically NOT INCLUDED in this scope of work include: Construction Stake-Out, 
Geotechnical Engineering, Geotechnical Testing, Corps of Engineers Permitting, Structural 
Design of Retaining Walls, Landscape Design, Storm Water Monitoring, Utility Main Relocation 
and any Off-Site Improvements other than those included within the scope of services.  If any of 
these items becomes necessary, we will perform those tasks as Additional Services or help you 
to contract with an entity which provides that service. 

Your signature on the following page will serve as our formal notice to proceed with the above-
described scope of services.  Again, we appreciate the opportunity to present our proposal of 
professional services and we look forward to a successful project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES: 
 

Personnel time for additional services covered under this agreement will be invoiced based on 
the following Rate Schedule.  These Rates are subject to adjustment on January 1st of each 
year. 
 
Engineering Rate Schedule 
• Principal in Charge    $125.00 per hour 
• Project Manager    $115.00 per hour 
• Senior Design Engineer   $105.00 per hour 
• Project Engineer    $  95.00 per hour 

 
Surveying Rate Schedule 
• Field Crew     $135.00 per hour 
• Professional Land Surveyor   $115.00 per hour 
• Senior Drafter     $  95.00 per hour 
• Drafter      $  75.00 per hour 

 
Reimbursable Expenses 
Expenses incurred for work covered under this contract will be invoiced at cost plus 15 percent.  
These expenses include, but are not limited to: 
• Printing 
• Shipping 
• Permitting and Application Fees 
• Outside Consultants 
• Travel – (Travel will be reimbursed at $0.58 per mile) 

 
 
 
Payment 
Services rendered in accordance with this proposal will be invoiced monthly based on work 
completed.  Invoices are due upon receipt and will be considered delinquent if not received 
within 30 days after receipt.  Engineering Design Group LLC may, without legal consequence, 
suspend services until payment is received. 
 
Client agrees that payment for services rendered shall not be contingent or dependent upon any 
conditions or any action or undertaking of the Client other than those conditions, if any, 
specifically set forth in this agreement. 
 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. CONTRACT - These Contract Provisions and the accompanying Proposal constitute the full and complete Agreement

between the parties and may be changed, amended, added to, superseded, or waived only if both parties specifically agree in

writing to such amendment of the Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between these Contract Provisions and any

proposal, contract, purchase order, requisition, notice to proceed, or like document, these Contract Provisions shall govern.

2. RIGHT OF ENTRY - When entry to property is required for the CONSULTANT to perform its services, the Client agrees to

obtain legal right-of-entry on the property.

3. DOCUMENTS - All reports, notes, drawings, specifications, data, calculations, and other documents, including those in

electronic form, prepared by CONSULTANT are instruments of CONSULTANT's service that shall remain CONSULTANT's

property. The Client agrees not to use CONSULTANT-generated documents for marketing purposes, for projects other than

the project for which the documents were prepared by CONSULTANT, or for future modifications to this project, without

CONSULTANT's express written permission.

Any reuse or distribution to third parties without such express written permission or project-specific adaptation by
CONSULTANT will be at the Client's sole risk and without liability to CONSULTANT or its employees, subsidiaries,
independent professional associates, subconsultants, and subcontractors. Client shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless CONSULTANT from and against any and all costs, expenses, fees, losses, claims,
demands, liabilities, suits, actions, and damages whatsoever arising out of or resulting from such unauthorized reuse or
distribution.

4. DISPOSAL OF SAMPLES - CONSULTANT will discard samples upon completion of the work covered under this Agreement,

unless the Client instructs otherwise in writing.

5. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - The scope of CONSULTANT's services for this Agreement does not include any responsibility

for detection, remediation, accidental release, or services relating to waste, oil, asbestos, lead, or other hazardous materials,

as defined by Federal, State, and local laws or regulations.

6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES - If CONSULTANT performs any services during the construction phase of the project,

CONSULTANT shall not supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor's work. CONSULTANT shall not have authority over

or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or for safety precautions and

programs in connection with the work of the Contractor. CONSULTANT does not guarantee the performance of the

construction contract by the Contractor and does not assume responsibility for the Contractor's failure to furnish and perform

its work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

7. STANDARD OF CARE - CONSULTANT and its employees, subsidiaries, independent professional associates,

subconsultants, and subcontractors will exercise that degree of care and skill ordinarily practiced under similar circumstances

by design professionals providing similar services. Client agrees that services provided will be rendered without any warranty,

express or implied.

CONSULTANT shall exercise usual and customary professional care in its efforts to comply with applicable codes, regulations,
laws, rules, ordinances, and such other requirements in effect as of the date of execution of this Agreement.

8. OPINION OF PROBABLE COSTS - When required as part of its work, CONSULTANT will furnish opinions of probable cost,

but does not guarantee the accuracy of such estimates. Opinions of probable cost, financial evaluations, feasibility studies,

economic analyses of alternate solutions, and utilitarian considerations of operations and maintenance costs prepared by

CONSULTANT hereunder will be made on the basis of CONSULTANT's experience and qualifications and will represent

CONSULTANT's judgment as an experienced and qualified design professional. However, users of the probable cost opinions

must recognize that CONSULTANT does not have control over the cost of labor, material. equipment, or services furnished by

others or over market conditions or contractors' methods of determining prices or performing the work.

9. SUSPENSION OF WORK - The Client may, at any time, by written notice, suspend further work by CONSULTANT. The Client

shall remain liable for, and shall promptly pay CONSULTANT for all services rendered to the date of suspension of services,

plus suspension charges, which shall include the cost of assembling documents, personnel and equipment, rescheduling or

reassignment, and commitments made to others on Client's behalf.

Client shall pay CONSULTANT pursuant to the rates and charges set forth in the Proposal. CONSULTANT will submit monthly



invoices to Client for services rendered and expenses incurred. If Client does not pay invoices within thirty (30) days of
submission of invoice, CONSULTANT may, upon written notice to the Client, suspend further work until payments are brought
current. The Client agrees to indemnify and hold CONSULTANT harmless from any claim or liability resulting from such
suspension.

10. CHANGES OR DELAYS - Unless the accompanying Proposal provides otherwise, the proposed fees constitute CONSU-

LTANT's estimate to perform the services required to complete the Project. Required services often are not fully definable in

the initial planning; accordingly, developments may dictate a change in the scope of services to be performed. Where this

occurs, changes in the Agreement shall be negotiated and an equitable adjustment shall be made.

Costs and schedule commitments shall be subject to renegotiation for unreasonable delays caused by the Client's failure to
provide specified facilities, direction, or information, or if CONSULTANT's failure to perform is due to any act of God, labor
trouble, fire, inclement weather, act of governmental authority, failure of transportation, accident, power failure, or interruption
or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of CONSULTANT. Temporary work stoppage caused by any of the above
may result in additional cost beyond that outlined in the accompanying Proposal.

11. LIABILITY - To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total liability, in the aggregate, of CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT's

officers, directors, employees, agents, and consultants to Client and anyone claiming by, through or under Client, for any and

all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to CONSULTANT's services,

the Project or this Agreement, from any cause or causes whatsoever, including but not limited to, negligence, strict liability,

breach of contract or breach of warranty shall not exceed the total compensation received by CONSULTANT under this

Agreement.

12. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST - This assignment may involve parties with adverse interests to clients with whom CONSULTANT

has current or past relationships. It is CONSULTANT policy to make reasonable attempts to identify such relationships prior to

acceptance of a professional assignment, but CONSULTANT cannot assure that conflicts or perceived conflicts will not arise,

and CONSULTANT does not accept responsibility for such occurrences.

13. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES - CONSULTANT will bill direct non payroll expenses at cost plus 10%. Direct expenses include

all reasonable expenses resulting from required responses to subpoenas or court orders related to work under the Contract.

14. MISCELLANEOUS - Governing Law: The laws of the state in which the CONSULTANT office executing this Agreement is

located shall govern the validity and interpretation of this Agreement.

Invalid Terms: In the event any of these Contract Provisions are found to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, the
unenforceable Contract Provision will be stricken. Striking such a Contract Provision shall have no effect on the enforceabil ity
of the remaining Contract Provisions and those remaining Contract Provisions shall continue in full force and effect as if the
unenforceable Contract Provision were never included in the Agreement.

Mediation: The Client and CONSULTANT agree to submit all claims and disputes arising out of this Agreement to non-binding
mediation prior to the initiation of legal proceedings. This provision shall survive completion or termination of this Agreement;
however, neither party shall seek mediation of any claim or dispute arising out of this Agreement beyond the period of time
that would bar the initiation of legal proceedings to litigate such claim or dispute under the applicable law.

CONSULTANT Reliance: CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely, without liability, on the accuracy and completeness of any
and all information provided by Client, Client's consultants and contractors, and information from public records, without the
need for independent verification.

Certifications: CONSULTANT shall not be required to sign any documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result in
CONSULTANT's having to certify, guaranty, or warrant the existence of conditions that CONSULTANT cannot ascertain.

Third Parties: Nothing contained In this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor of,
a third party against either the Client or CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT's services hereunder are being performed solely for
the benefit of the Client, and no other entity shall have any claim against CONSULTANT because of this Agreement or
CONSULTANT's performance of services hereunder.

Consequential Damages: Neither the Client nor the CONSULTANT shall be liable to the other or shall make any claim for any
incidental, indirect or consequential damages arising out of, or connected in any way to the Project or this Agreement. This
mutual waiver includes, but is not limited to, damages related to loss of use, loss of profits, loss of income, loss of reputation,
unrealized savings or diminution of property value and shall apply to any cause of action including negligence, strict liabil ity,
breach of contract and breach of warranty.






	2016_0523CC_A
	2016_0509CC_M
	Ordinance 2655
	Ordinance 2656
	Ordinance 2657
	Ordinance 2658
	Ordinance 2659
	Ordinance 2660
	Ordinance 2661
	Ordinance 2662
	Ordinance 2663
	Ordinance 2664
	Resolution 4836
	Resolution 4836
	Report
	IMG_1111
	IMG_1080
	IMG_1081
	IMG_1082
	IMG_1083
	IMG_1084
	IMG_1085
	IMG_1086
	IMG_1087

	Resolution 4837
	Resolution 4837
	Property Owner Letter
	Report
	Additional Letters
	IMG_1110
	IMG_1088
	IMG_1089
	IMG_1090
	IMG_1092
	IMG_1093
	IMG_1094
	IMG_1096
	IMG_1097
	IMG_1098
	IMG_1099
	IMG_1100

	Resolution 4838
	Resolution 4839
	Resolution 4840



